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DESCRIBETHE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Tillman Hall (originally Main Building), completed in 1894, was the first building 
on the campus of present-day Winthrop College. Designed in the Richardsonian 
Romanesque style of architecture, the building is constructed of red, pressed 
brick, laid in a bond entirely of stretchers. It is three stories high and in­ 
cludes a basement and attic. The structure is in a basic "T" shape with the front 
section (facing Oakland Avenue) laid out as a central pavilion with wings. The 
roof of the building is a combination of a gabled and hipped configuration; it is 
covered with slate and copper with galvanized iron cornices. All of the building 
is of Ohio stone.

The basement is constructed of South Carolina granite, natural-faced ashlar, laid 
in broken course. (Originally it housed the gymnasium with swimming pool, the 
printing department, heating and ventilation equipment, and various other rooms.) 
The main entrance is on the first floor of the building through a double elliptical 
arched vestibule into a reception hall. The open vestibule is embellished with a 
marble floor and a billet style balustrade.

A central square tower is located to the left of the open vestibule; it is built 
on a massive stone base and has an open belfry and a clock deck with dial faces 
on all four sides. The name of the college is inscribed in the stone base and the 
cornerstone was laid at the front left corner of the base.

Facade: The main entrance is a double-arched vestibule. The arches are elliptical 
with radiating voussoirs and keystone. Rising to the left of the main entrance is 
the square, central tower. The'cornerstone is located in the east side of the 
tower's base, facing Oakland Avenue.

At the top of the first story of the tower there is a solid slab of sandstone ex­ 
tending around two sides. On the east side, near the center of the belt course 
is a carved coat of arms of the State of South Carolina along with Sullivanesque- 
style floral motifs. On the north side is the name of the college in large raised 
letters. The second story of the tower is accented with stone quoins and lintel 
course.

An open belfry is located above the third story of the tower. Immediately above the 
belfry is a clock deck with dial faces on all four sides of the tower. Semi­ 
circular arches around the dial faces are repeated in the transom arches at the 
third level. The clock deck is covered by a Sullivanesque-style frieze above which 
is a conical turret covered with green ceramic tile surmounted by a cast iron finial,

The first floor'windows, and those on the wings of the second and third floor, are 
basically double hung sash, 2/2 ?with stilted lintel of stone. Immediately above 
the arches of the main entrance are two large bay windows, extending to the height 
of the third story. The lower portions of these windows are double hung sash, 
1/1, with transom. Above the transom is located a wide spandrel with a fret band 
carved in wood. Located at the top of the spandrel are small windows which repeat 
the pattern of those below. The bay windows are surmounted by semicircular arches
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Completed in 1894, Tillman Hall has served as the focal point of the Winthrop College 
campus since the school's opening session in Rock Hill, South Carolina, in 1895. 
One of the few remaining examples of Richardsonian Romanesque architecture in the 
state, it is also one of the most outstanding.

In 1886 the Winthrop Training School for Teachers began operations in the chapel of 
the Presbyterian Theological Seminary in Columbia, South Carolina, under the direction 
of Dr. David Bancroft Johnson and with the assistance of the City of Columbia School 
Board and the Peabody Education Foundation. The school was named for the head of 
the Foundation, Robert C. Winthrop.

In November 1891 the Board of Trustees tendered the Winthrop Training School to the 
State of South Carolina. By an act of the General Assembly on December 23, 1891 the 
school became state-supported and was renamed the South Carolina Industrial and 
Winthrop Normal College, becoming the first state-supported college for women in 
South Carolina. (In 1920 the school's name was changed to Winthrop College, the 
South Carolina College for Women. With the advent of coeducation in 1972, the 
school became known as, simply, Winthrop College.)

The College was governed by a new Board of Trustees who were appointed by the General 
Assembly and were- authorized to open bids for a permanent site at which to locate 
the new, state-supported college. In 1893 the city of Rock Hill was selected.

On August 8, 1893 the Board chose the firm of Bruce and Morgan from Atlanta, Georgia 
as the architects for the main building of the college (present-day Tillman Hall). 
Main Building (as it was called until 1962) was constructed by the Thompson Decker 
Construction Company of Birmingham, Alabama, and labor was provided by convicts 
from the South Carolina State Penitentiary. On May 12, 1894 the cornerstone of 
Main Building was completed. The total cost forthis first campus building was 
$200,000.

The South Carolina Industrial and Winthrop Normal College opened its first session in 
Rock Hill in the fall of 1895 with Dr. D. B., Johnson as President. The campus 
buildings consisted of Main, one dormitory, a kitchen, a laundry, and an engine house 
(power plant). Main Building housed all administrative offices, all classrooms and 
laboratories, the college library, an auditorium, two social halls, a gymnasium with 
swimming pool, an art hall and museum, and, to the rear of the building, a chapel and 
dining hall.

(continued)
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

Till man Hall is a "T" shaped building consisting of 2 rectangles. The rectangle 
making the head or front of the "T" being 195' in length and 112' in width and 
consisting of 5 floors with a clock tower in the front center. The body of the 
"T" (or rear portion of building) being 160' in length & 65' in width consisting 
of 3 levels.
The front steps are located 230' SW of the nearest curb of Oakland Avenue, 1719' 
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over semicircular multi-paned transoms. The radiating voussoirs of the vestibule 
arches are repeated on the bay windows. A smaller version of these windows occurs 
in the third story of the flanking wings.

The attic story has ribbon windows, double hung sash, 2/2, separated by brick pilas­ 
ters. These windows are supported by a horizontal course of brackets with a simple 
cornice above.

Interior: From the open vestibule, double wooden doors lead into the reception hall. 
Originally to the left was located the President's private office and the office 
of the Secretary/Treasurer. These offices are now occupied by the Registrar and 
part of his staff. To the right are located several large reception rooms and a 
parlor, which could all be joined into one large room if needed. This front hall 
connects with a wide corridor extending the length of the building. Originally 
this corridor provided access to various classrooms and study areas. These rooms 
now house various administrative offices.

First floor, left wing houses administrative offices while first floor, right wing 
houses the President and his immediate staff. (This is the side entrance which was 
permanently closed in 1974-75). A wide stairway with two flights and a landing, 
centrally located, leads to the second floor. Pine paneling and fluted columns 
form the balustrade.

On the second floor is the entrance to the original commencement hall. It has a 
seating capacity of 1500, including the gallery, and a stage, or rostrum, which 
will seat between 100 and 250 people. A music room was originally located in this 
auditorium. The second floor was originally used for chemical and physical labora­ 
tories, science lecture rooms, classrooms, and the college library. This floor is 
now used for classrooms and the offices of the Honors Council. Although pre-empted 
as a commencement hall by Byrnes Auditorium, the main building auditorium is still 
used for various campus activities.

Stairways at either end of the second floor corridor lead to the third floor. This 
floor originally housed the art hall and museum, various classrooms, and two large 
society halls. Here also is the entrance to the gallery of the auditorium. The 
third floor is not presently in use.

The dining hall is located in the center of the rear section of the building. Used 
as a cafeteria until 1974, it now functions as a study area and a banquet hall. The 
dominant feature of the room is an elaborate timber roof framing system.

The interior of Tillman is finished in hardwood with ornamental plasterwork on all 
floors. The walls are of plaster.

(continued)
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The basement of the building now is the location of the various financial offices 
of the college, office services (include printing), and the college radio station.

Alterations: Tillman Hall remains virtually unaltered, with no major structural 
changes since its completion. Changes through the years have included: installation 
of a modern ceiling tile and modern lighting (dates unknown); air-conditioning, 
1959-60; slate roof reinforced & mortar replaced between brick (damage due to storm), 
1960; side entrance enclosed & utilized as office space, 1974-75; dining hall con­ 
verted to study area/banquet hall, 1974; and third floor closed temporarily for 
security reasons, Fall, 1975 (is kept in good condition in case need to utilize 
arises).

Surroundings: Tillman stands at nearly the center of the tree-shaded Winthrop 
campus. Immediately across from the building's main entrance, in a small grassy 
clearing, is a stone fountain.

The first dormitory constructed on campus, Margaret Nance Hall, stands to the right 
of Tillman and is connected to Tillman's old dining hall by a brick passageway. To 
the left is McLaurin Hall, Winthrop's second dormitory. The original kitchen building, 
constructed of brick and stone and connected to Tillman's old dining hall, now 
houses the Campus Security offices.
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As the college grew in enrollment, additional classroom buildings and a gymnasium 
were erected, relieving the crowded conditions in Main Building.

In 1962 Main Building was renamed Tillman Hall -- the name "Tillman" having been 
associated with Winthrop College since its founding. (Benjamin R. Tillman, Governor 
of South Carolina and U.S. Senator, was an early advocate of a state-supported 
college for women. He was instrumental not only in the founding of Winthrop but 
also in the establishment of Clemson College [present-day Clemson University;/in 
South Carolina as an agricultural school* Tillman also served as a member 
and Chairman of Winthrop College's Board of Trustees.)

Winthrop College is today a state-supported coeducational institution of higher 
learning in South Carolina. As the school has grown over the years, its physical 
plant has also expanded. Tillman Hall, however, has continued to function as the 
"main building" for the campus and today houses the administrative and business 
offices of the college.

Architecture: Tillman is an excellent example of the Richardsonian Romanesque style. 
The building is primarily symmetrical in plan and facade design with the exception 
of the asymmetrical clock tower. Outstanding features include dramatic semicircular 
and elliptical arches, a bracketed belt course, projecting bay windows, a Sullivanesque- 
style frieze, native granite foundation, a conical-roofed clock tower and elaborate 
interior wood and plaster work. The building is well maintained with great sensi­ 
tivity exhibited in the retention of original interior and exterior finishes.
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Minutes, Board of Trustees. Winthrop Archives, January 4, 1892-March 29, 1900.

Minute Book (of Mr. Mayfield), Board of Trustees, Winthrop Archives, Jan. 4, 1892- 
May 31, 1893.

Physical Plant Records, Winthrop College Archives, Box 25, W428, Folder 145 to 149, 
Tillman Hall (Administration Building).

"Winthrop College: From a Stable to a Lovely $10 Million Campus." Rock 
Hill Evening Herald, 3 May, 1952.

"Winthrop College Cornerstone Day," Enterprise Publishing Company, Lancaster, 
S.C., 1894.

Winthrop College-Bulletin, 1973-1974.
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SE of the nearest curb of Cherry Road & 719' NW of the nearest curb 
of Stewart Ave. The farthest rear wall of the building lies 774' NE 
of the center line of Water Street.


